RADIOSHACK CORP Form 10-Q July 25, 2012

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

	Washington, D.C. 20549
	FORM 10-Q
	TORM TO Q
(Mark One)	
[X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT OF 1934	TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2012	2
	or
[]TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT 7 OF 1934	TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
For the transition period from	to
C	ommission File Number: 1-5571

RADIOSHACK CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 75-1047710
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

Mail Stop CF3-201, 300 RadioShack Circle, Fort Worth, 76102

Texas

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) (817) 415-3011

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X No ___

every Interactive Data File required to be submitted	submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website, if any, ed and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the nat the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes X
	accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting
	Non-accelerated filer [] Smaller reporting
X]	company []
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a	shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes No X
The number of shares outstanding of the issuer's C	Common Stock, \$1 par value, on July 16, 2012, was 99,441,841.

TABLE OF CONTENTS Page

PART I – FINA	NCIAL INFORMA	TION	,-
	Item 1.	Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)	3
	Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	20
	Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	26
	Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	27
PART II – OTH	IER INFORMATIO	N	
	Item 1.	Legal Proceedings	27
	Item 1A.	Risk Factors	27
	Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	28
	Item 6.	Exhibits	28
		<u>Signatures</u>	29
		Index to Exhibits	30
2			

PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

RADIOSHACK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (unaudited)

		Months Ended June 30,		onths Ended ine 30,
(In millions, except per share amounts)	2012	2011	2012	2011
Net sales and operating revenues	\$953.2	\$941.9	\$1,961.5	\$1,959.3
Cost of products sold (includes depreciation amounts of \$2.1				
million,				
\$1.9 million, \$4.1 million and \$3.6 million, respectively)	592.9	509.8	1,206.7	1,072.8
Gross profit	360.3	432.1	754.8	886.5
Operating expenses:	262.7	2612	525 0	72. 4.0
Selling, general and administrative	362.5	364.3	735.8	734.9
Depreciation and amortization	18.0	18.3	36.9	36.6
Impairment of long-lived assets	1.0	0.6	1.5	1.0
Total operating expenses	381.5	383.2	774.2	772.5
On anothing (loss) in some	(21.2	10.0	(10.4) 1140
Operating (loss) income	(21.2) 48.9	(19.4) 114.0
Interest income	0.3	0.5	0.8	0.8
Interest expense	(12.9) (10.9) (26.0) (20.6)
Other loss	(12.)) (10.)		(4.1)
				(1.1
(Loss) income from continuing operations before income				
taxes	(33.8) 38.5	(44.6) 90.1
Income tax (benefit) expense	(12.8) 15.0	(15.6) 35.2
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		,	,	,
(Loss) income from continuing operations	(21.0) 23.5	(29.0) 54.9
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes		1.4		5.1
Net (loss) income	\$(21.0) \$24.9	\$(29.0) \$60.0
Basic and diluted net (loss) income per share:				
(Loss) income per share from continuing operations	\$(0.21) \$0.23	\$(0.29) \$0.52
Income per share from discontinued operations		0.01		0.05
Net (loss) income per share	\$(0.21) \$0.24	\$(0.29) \$0.57
	A (22.0))
Comprehensive (loss) income	\$(23.9) \$26.3	\$(26.3) \$63.4
Character 1 in a constitution of (1)				
Shares used in computing net (loss) income				
per share:				

Basic	100.1	103.7	100.0	104.9
Diluted	100.1	104.6	100.0	105.9

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

RADIOSHACK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets (unaudited)

(In millions, except share amounts) Assets Current assets:		June 30, 2012	D	ecember 31, 2011		June 30, 2011	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	517.7	\$	591.7	\$	552.2	
Accounts and notes receivable, net	Ψ	250.0	Ψ	360.6	Ψ	278.4	
Inventories		828.7		744.4		727.2	
Other current assets (See Note 4)		144.8		116.1		104.4	
Total current assets		1,741.2		1,812.8		1,662.2	
Total Cultent assets		1,771.2		1,012.0		1,002.2	
Property, plant and equipment, net		256.5		270.2		274.5	
Goodwill		38.4		37.0		43.3	
Other assets, net		51.6		55.1		84.3	
Total assets	\$	2,087.7	\$	2,175.1	\$	2,064.3	
	·	,				,	
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity							
Current liabilities:							
Current maturities of long-term debt (See Note 5)	\$	355.4	\$		\$		
Accounts payable		352.3		348.2		225.4	
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities		267.5		315.4		274.8	
Total current liabilities		975.2		663.6		500.2	
Long-term debt, excluding current maturities		323.9		670.6		662.2	
Other non-current liabilities		84.0		87.6		93.9	
Total liabilities		1,383.1		1,421.8		1,256.3	
Commitments and contingencies							
Stockholders' equity:							
Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000							
shares authorized:							
Series A junior participating, 300,000 shares							
designated and none issued							
Common stock, \$1 par value, 650,000,000 shares							
authorized;							
146,033,000 shares issued		146.0		146.0		146.0	
Additional paid-in capital		135.5		137.1		142.0	
Retained earnings		1,471.2		1,525.1		1,562.5	
Treasury stock, at cost; 46,591,000, 46,715,000,							
and 46,254,000 shares, respectively		(1,038.9)	(1,043.0)	(1,041.6)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss		(9.2)	(11.9)	(0.9)
Total stockholders' equity		704.6		753.3		808.0	
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$	2,087.7	\$	2,175.1	\$	2,064.3	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

RADIOSHACK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited)

(In millions) Cash flows from operating activities:		Ionths Ended June 30, 2011
Net (loss) income	\$(29.0) \$60.0
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash	\$(29.0) \$00.0
provided by operating activities:		
Depreciation and amortization	41.0	40.6
Amortization of discounts on long-term debt	8.7	7.9
Impairment of long-lived assets	1.5	1.0
Stock-based compensation	3.7	2.9
Other non-cash items	4.4	5.7
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:	7.7	5.1
Accounts and notes receivable	110.1	99.5
Inventories	(83.2) (2.1
Other current assets	(3.0) 6.3
Accounts payable	20.5	(60.4)
Accrued expenses and other	(51.8) (59.9
Net cash provided by operating activities	22.9	101.5
The cash provided by operating activities	22.)	101.5
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Additions to property, plant and equipment	(27.7) (41.5)
Changes in restricted cash (See Note 4)	(26.5)
Other investing activities	0.1	
Net cash used in investing activities	(54.1) (41.5)
Cash flows from financing activities:		
Payments of dividends	(24.9)
Changes in cash overdrafts	(17.9) 12.6
Issuance of long-term notes		322.5
Long-term notes issuance costs		(6.2)
Repayments of borrowings		(306.8)
Purchases of treasury stock		(101.4)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options		2.1
Net cash used in financing activities	(42.8) (77.2)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(74.0) (17.2)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	591.7	569.4
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$517.7	\$552.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

RADIOSHACK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Throughout this report, the terms "our," "we," "us," "Company," and "RadioShack" refer to RadioShack Corporation, including its subsidiaries. We prepared the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements, which include the accounts of RadioShack Corporation and all majority-owned domestic and foreign subsidiaries, in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Accordingly, we did not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") for complete financial statements. In management's opinion, all adjustments of a normal recurring nature considered necessary for a fair statement are included. However, our operating results for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, do not necessarily indicate the results you might expect for the full year. For further information, refer to our consolidated financial statements and management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

NOTE 2 – NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued new accounting guidance to update the presentation of comprehensive income in consolidated financial statements. Under this new guidance, an entity has the option to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements in its annual financial statements. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. We adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2012. Please refer to our condensed consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, for the required interim period disclosure. In addition to net income, the other component of our comprehensive income was foreign currency translation adjustments.

NOTE 3 – DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

We account for closed stores or kiosks as discontinued operations when the operations and cash flows of a store or kiosk being disposed of are eliminated from ongoing operations and we do not have any significant continuing involvement in its operations. In reaching the determination as to whether the cash flows of a store or kiosk will be eliminated from our ongoing operations, we consider whether it is likely that customers will migrate to our other retail locations in the same geographic market.

All of our remaining kiosks located in Sam's Club stores were transitioned to Sam's Club by June 30, 2011. We determined that the cash flows from these kiosks were eliminated from our ongoing operations. Therefore, these operations were reclassified from the kiosks segment to discontinued operations in the second quarter of 2011. The operating results of these kiosks are presented in the condensed consolidated statements of comprehensive income as discontinued operations, net of income taxes, for all periods presented.

We incurred no significant gain or loss associated with the transition of these kiosks to Sam's Club. We redeployed substantially all of our Sam's Club kiosk employees to nearby RadioShack stores or Target Mobile centers, and we redistributed our Sam's Club kiosk inventory to our remaining retail channels. Net sales and operating revenues related to these discontinued operations were zero for the second quarter of 2012 and the first six months of 2012, compared

with \$17.0 million and \$62.9 million, respectively, for the same periods last year. Income before income taxes for these discontinued operations was zero for the second quarter of 2012 and the first six months of 2012, compared with \$2.4 million and \$8.4 million, respectively, for the same periods last year.

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash totaled \$26.5 million at June 30, 2012, and is included in other current assets in our consolidated balance sheets. This cash is pledged as collateral for a standby letter of credit issued to our general liability insurance provider. We have the ability to withdraw this cash at any time and instead provide a letter of credit issued under our \$450 million asset-based revolving credit facility that expires in January 2016 ("2016 Credit Facility") similar to the letter of credit that was issued under our 2016 Credit Facility at December 31, 2011. We have elected to pledge this cash as collateral to reduce our costs associated with our general liability insurance.

NOTE 5 – INDEBTEDNESS AND BORROWING FACILITIES

2013 Convertible Notes: In August 2008, we sold \$375 million aggregate principal amount of 2.50% convertible senior notes due August 1, 2013, (the "2013 Convertible Notes") in a private offering to qualified institutional buyers. The 2013 Convertible Notes were issued at par and interest is payable semiannually, in arrears, on February 1 and August 1.

Each \$1,000 of principal of the 2013 Convertible Notes is currently convertible, under certain circumstances, into 42.0746 shares of our common stock (or a total of approximately 15.8 million shares), which is the equivalent of \$23.77 per share, subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of specified events set forth under terms of the 2013 Convertible Notes. Upon conversion, we would pay the holder the cash value of the applicable number of shares of our common stock, up to the principal amount of the note. Amounts in excess of the principal amount, if any (the "excess conversion value"), may be paid in cash or in stock, at our option. Holders may convert their 2013 Convertible Notes into common stock on the net settlement basis described above at any time from May 1, 2013, until the close of business on July 29, 2013.

We classified the 2013 Convertible Notes as a current liability at June 30, 2012. While we are not obligated to repay the principal amount of the notes until August 1, 2013, a holder of the notes may elect to convert the notes beginning on May 1, 2013, which is within one year of our balance sheet date. Based on the \$3.84 per share closing market price of our common stock at June 29, 2012, a holder who elects to convert their notes before the maturity date would receive a conversion value of \$161.57 per \$1,000 principal note.

2019 Notes: On May 3, 2011, we sold \$325 million aggregate principal amount of 6.75% senior unsecured notes due May 15, 2019, in a private offering to qualified institutional buyers. These notes were exchanged for substantially identical notes that were registered with the SEC in December 2011 ("2019 Notes"). The obligation to pay principal and interest on the 2019 Notes is jointly and severally guaranteed on a full and unconditional basis by all of the guarantors under the 2016 Credit Facility, which currently includes all of our wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries except Tandy Life Insurance Company. The 2019 Notes pay interest at a fixed rate of 6.75% per year. Interest is payable semiannually, in arrears, on May 15 and November 15.

The 2019 Notes contain covenants that could, in certain circumstances, limit our ability to issue additional debt, repurchase shares of our common stock, make certain other restricted payments, make investments, or enter into certain other transactions. At June 30, 2012, we were in compliance with these covenants.

Refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, for additional information regarding the 2019 Notes.

NOTE 6 – STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

We paid a \$0.125 per share dividend in the first and second quarters of 2012, which totaled \$12.5 million in the second quarter and \$24.9 million for the first six months of 2012. On July 25, 2012, we announced that we suspended our dividend. During the second quarter of 2011, we paid \$101.4 million to purchase 6.3 million shares of our common stock in open market purchases.

NOTE 7 - PLANT CLOSURE

During the second quarter of 2011 we ceased production operations in our Chinese manufacturing plant. Since production operations ceased, we have continued to acquire inventory similar to that previously produced by this facility from alternative product sourcing channels. In conjunction with the plant closing, we incurred total costs of \$10.2 million for the first six months of 2011. We incurred \$7.1 million in compensation expense for severance packages for the termination of approximately 1,500 employees. We recorded a foreign currency exchange loss of \$1.5 million related to the reversal of our foreign currency cumulative translation adjustment, which is classified as a selling, general and administrative expense. We also recorded an inventory valuation loss of \$1.2 million, which is classified as additional cost of products sold, and accelerated depreciation of \$0.4 million.

NOTE 8 - NET (LOSS) INCOME PER SHARE

Basic net (loss) income per share is computed based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for each period presented. Diluted net (loss) income per share reflects the potential dilution that would have occurred if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised, converted, or resulted in the issuance of common stock that would have then shared in our earnings.

The following table reconciles the numerator and denominator used in the basic and diluted net (loss) income per share calculations for the periods presented:

	Three Months Ended June 30,		211111	onths Ended une 30,
(In millions)	2012	2011	2012	2011
Numerator:				
(Loss) income from continuing operations	\$(21.0) \$23.5	\$(29.0) \$54.9
Discontinued operations, net of taxes		1.4		5.1
Net (loss) income	\$(21.0) \$24.9	\$(29.0) \$60.0
Denominator:				
Weighted-average common shares outstanding	100.1	103.7	100.0	104.9
Dilutive effect of stock-based awards		0.9		1.0
Weighted average shares for diluted net (loss) income per share	100.1	104.6	100.0	105.9

The following table includes common stock equivalents that were not included in the calculation of diluted net (loss) income per share for the periods presented. These securities could be dilutive in future periods.

	Three Months Ended June 30,			nths Ended ne 30,
(In millions)	2012	2011	2012	2011
Employee stock options (1) (2)	7.4	2.3	7.4	2.3
Warrants to purchase common stock (3)	15.8	15.5	15.8	15.5
Convertible debt instruments (4)	15.8	15.5	15.8	15.5

- (1) For the second quarter of 2012 and the first six months of 2012, these common stock equivalents were excluded because the effect of their inclusion would reduce our net loss per share in these periods and would be antidilutive. In addition, the exercise prices of these common stock equivalents exceeded the average market price of our common stock during these periods.
- (2) For the second quarter of 2011 and the first six months of 2011, these common stock equivalents were excluded because their exercise prices exceeded the average market price of our common stock during this period, and the effect of their inclusion would be antidilutive.
- (3) These common stock equivalents were excluded because their exercise prices (\$35.88 per share, \$36.60 per share, \$35.88 per share and \$36.60 per share for each period, respectively) exceeded the average market prices of our common stock during these periods, and the effect of their inclusion would be antidilutive.
- (4) These common stock equivalents were excluded because their conversion prices (\$23.77 per share, \$24.25 per share, \$23.77 per share and \$24.25 per share for each period, respectively) exceeded the average market prices of our common stock during these periods, and the effect of their inclusion would be antidilutive.

NOTE 9 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

		Basi	s of Fair Value Measu	irements
		Quoted	Significant	
		Prices	Other	Significant
	Fair Value	in Active	Observable	Unobservable
	of Assets	Markets for	Inputs	Inputs
(In millions)	(Liabilities)	Identical	(Level 2)	(Level 3)
		Items		
		(Level 1)		
Three Months Ended June 30,				
2012				
Long-lived assets held and used	\$0.4			\$0.4

The FASB's accounting guidance utilizes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to the valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels:

- Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
- Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; these include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active
 - Level 3: Unobservable inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions

For the three months ended June 30, 2012, long-lived assets held and used in certain locations of our U.S. RadioShack company-operated stores segment with a total carrying value of \$1.4 million were written down to their fair value of \$0.4 million, resulting in an impairment charge of \$1.0 million that was included in earnings for the period. The inputs used to calculate the fair value of these long-lived assets included the projected cash flows and a risk-adjusted rate of return that we estimated would be used by a market participant in valuing these assets. The projected cash flows for a particular store are based on average historical cash flows for that store and are projected through the remainder of its lease. The risk-adjusted rate of return used to discount these cash flows ranges from 15% to 20%.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments not measured at fair value on a recurring basis include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and long-term debt. With the exception of long-term debt, the financial statement carrying amounts of these items approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature. Estimated fair values for long-term debt have been determined using recent trading activity and/or bid-ask spreads and are classified as Level 2 in the FASB's fair value hierarchy.

Carrying amounts and the related estimated fair value of our debt financial instruments are as follows:

	June 3	June 30, 2012		er 31, 2011
	Carrying	Fair	Carrying	Fair
(In millions)	Amount	Value	Amount	Value
Total debt	\$679.3	\$598.4	\$670.6	\$641.0

The fair value of our 2.5% convertible notes due in 2013 was \$352.8 million at June 30, 2012, compared with \$358.6 million at December 31, 2011. The fair value of the 2019 Notes was \$244.6 million at June 30, 2012, compared with \$281.4 million at December 31, 2011.

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Loss Contingencies: FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 450 - Contingencies ("ASC 450") governs our disclosure and recognition of loss contingencies, including pending claims, lawsuits, disputes with third parties, investigations and other actions that are incidental to the operation of our business. ASC 450 uses the following defined terms to describe the likelihood of a future loss: probable – the future event or events are likely to occur, remote – the chance of the future event or events is slight, and reasonably possible – the chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than likely. ASC 450 also contains certain requirements with respect to how we accrue for and disclose information concerning our loss contingencies. We accrue for a loss contingency when we conclude that the likelihood of a loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. When the reasonable estimate of the loss is within a range of amounts, and no amount in the range constitutes a better estimate than any other amount, we accrue for the amount at the low end of the range. We adjust our accruals from time to time as we receive additional information, but the loss we incur may be significantly greater than or less than the amount we have accrued. We disclose loss contingencies if there is at least a reasonable possibility that a loss has been incurred. No accrual or disclosure is required for losses that are remote.

Brookler v. RadioShack Corporation: On April 6, 2004, plaintiffs filed a putative class action in Los Angeles Superior Court, Brookler v. RadioShack Corporation, claiming that we violated California's wage and hour laws relating to meal and rest periods. The meal period portion of the case was originally certified as a class action in

February 2006. Our first Motion for Decertification of the class was denied in August 2007. After a favorable decision at the California Court of Appeals in the similar case of Brinker Restaurant Corporation v. Superior Court, we filed a second motion for decertification, and in October 2008 the trial court granted our motion. The plaintiffs in Brookler appealed this ruling. Due to the unsettled nature of California law regarding the obligations of employers in respect of meal periods, we and the Brookler plaintiffs requested that the California Court of Appeals stay its ruling on the plaintiffs' appeal of the class decertification ruling pending the California Supreme Court's decision in Brinker. The appellate court denied this joint motion and then heard oral arguments in the case on August 5, 2010. On August 26, 2010, the California Court of Appeals reversed the trial court's decertification of the class, and our Petition for Rehearing was denied on September 14, 2010. On September 28, 2010, we filed a Petition for Review with the California Supreme Court, which granted review and placed the case on hold pending its decision in Brinker. On April 12, 2012, the California Supreme Court issued its decision in Brinker. On June 20, 2012, the California Supreme Court remanded the Brookler case to the California Court of Appeals instructing it to vacate its prior order and reconsider its ruling in light of its ruling in Brinker. The outcome of this case is uncertain and the ultimate resolution of it could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements in the period in which the resolution is recorded.

Ordonez v. RadioShack Corporation: In May 2010, Daniel Ordonez, on behalf of himself and all other similarly situated current and former employees, filed a Complaint against the Company in the Los Angeles Superior Court. In July 2010, Mr. Ordonez filed an Amended Complaint alleging, among other things, that we failed to provide required meal periods, provide required rest breaks, pay overtime compensation, pay minimum wages, and maintain required records. In September 2010 we removed the case to the United States District Court for the Central District of California. The proposed putative class in Ordonez consists of all current and former non-exempt employees for a period within the four (4) years preceding the filing of the case. The meal period claims raised in Ordonez are similar to the claims raised in Brookler as discussed above. Pursuant to a motion filed by the Ordonez parties, the court recently granted a Stipulation and Order to Stay Proceedings pending the decision of the California Supreme Court in Brinker. On April 12, 2012, the California Supreme Court issued its decision in Brinker. We are still evaluating the potential effect of this decision on Ordonez. The outcome of this case is uncertain and the ultimate resolution of it could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements in the period in which the resolution is recorded.

Song-Beverly Credit Card Act: In November 2010, RadioShack received service of process with respect to the first of four putative class action lawsuits filed in California (Sosinov v. RadioShack, Los Angeles Superior Court; Bitter v. RadioShack, Federal District Court, Central District of California; Moreno v. RadioShack, Federal District Court, Southern District of California; and Grant v. RadioShack, San Francisco Superior Court). The plaintiffs in all of these cases seek damages under California's Song-Beverly Credit Card Act (the "Act"). Plaintiffs claim that under one section of the Act, retailers are prohibited from recording certain personal identification information regarding their customers while processing credit card transactions unless certain statutory exceptions are applicable. The Act provides that any person who violates this section is subject to a civil penalty not to exceed \$250 for the first violation and \$1,000 for each subsequent violation. In each of the cases, plaintiffs allege that we violated the Act by asking them for personal identification information while processing a credit card transaction and then recording it. The outcomes of these cases are uncertain and the ultimate resolution of these cases could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements in the period in which the resolution is recorded.

Redman v. RadioShack Corporation: On September 26, 2011, Scott D.H. Redman filed a putative class action lawsuit against the Company in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois. Mr. Redman claims that we violated certain provisions of the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003 ("FACTA"), which amended the Fair Credit Reporting Act, by displaying the expiration dates of our customers' credit or debit cards on electronically printed transaction receipts. Mr. Redman filed a motion seeking to certify a class that includes all persons to whom the Company provided an electronically printed transaction receipt, in transactions occurring after June 3, 2008, that displayed the expiration date of the person's credit or debit card. On November 3, 2011, Mario Aliano and Vitoria Radavicuite filed a similar putative class action lawsuit against the Company, also in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois, alleging similar violations of FACTA. Mr. Aliano and Ms. Radavicuite initially filed a motion seeking to certify a class that includes all persons to whom the Company provided an electronically printed transaction receipt, in transactions occurring in Illinois after June 3, 2008, that displayed the expiration date of the person's credit or debit card. On December 28, 2011, Mr. Aliano and Ms. Radavicuite filed an amended complaint and an amended motion seeking to certify a class that was not limited to transactions occurring in Illinois. On January 11, 2012, the Aliano lawsuit was reassigned to the judge presiding over the Redman lawsuit on the basis of relatedness, and the two cases were consolidated for all purposes. On January 25, 2012, the presiding judge referred the matter to the magistrate judge assigned to the consolidated cases for mediation, extending the time by which the Company must respond to the pending complaints to such time as the magistrate judge shall order, and is holding the motions for class certification in abeyance. Mediation sessions were held in March and June of 2012. Neither resulted in a settlement, and we continue to vigorously defend these cases. The outcome of these cases is uncertain and the ultimate resolution of them could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial

statements in the period in which the resolutions are recorded.

Additional Disclosure: For certain loss contingencies, we are currently able to estimate the reasonably possible loss or range of loss, including reasonably possible loss amounts in excess of our accruals, and we estimated that the aggregate of these amounts could be up to \$12 million. This amount reflects recent developments in case law that pertain to certain claims currently pending against the Company. Probable and reasonably possible losses that we are currently unable to estimate are not included in this amount. In future periods, we may recognize a loss for all, part, or none of this amount.

We are currently unable to estimate the reasonably possible loss or range of loss in respect of certain loss contingencies. Some cases remain in an early stage, with few or no substantive legal decisions by the court defining the scope of the claims, the class (if any), or the potential damages. In addition, in some cases we are not able to estimate the amount of the loss, due to a significant unresolved question of law that is expected to have a significant impact on the probability or amount of loss when resolved. As these matters develop and we receive additional information, we may be able to estimate reasonably possible losses or range of loss for these matters.

Our evaluation of our loss contingencies involves subjective assessments, assumptions, and judgments, and actual losses incurred in future periods may differ significantly from our estimates. Accordingly, although occasional adverse resolutions may occur and negatively affect our consolidated financial statements in the period of the resolution, we believe that the ultimate resolution of our loss contingencies for which we have not accrued losses will not materially adversely affect our financial condition.

NOTE 11 - SEGMENT REPORTING

The U.S. RadioShack company-operated stores segment consists solely of our 4,423 U.S. company-operated retail stores, all operating under the RadioShack brand name. We evaluate the performance of our segments based on operating income, which is defined as sales less cost of products sold and certain direct operating expenses, including labor, rent, and occupancy costs. Asset balances by segment have not been included in the table below, as these are managed on a company-wide level and are not fully allocated to segments for management reporting purposes. Amounts in the other category reflect our business activities that are not separately reportable, which include sales through our Target Mobile centers, sales to our independent dealers, sales generated by our www.radioshack.com website and our Mexican subsidiary, sales to commercial customers, and sales to other third parties through our global sourcing and manufacturing operations.

Revenue by reportable segment is as follows:

	Three M	Three Months Ended		nths Ended
	Ju	June 30,		ne 30,
(In millions)	2012	2011	2012	2011
U.S. RadioShack company-operated stores	\$772.4	\$797.8	\$1,606.0	\$1,693.0
Other	180.8	144.1	355.5	266.3
	\$953.2	\$941.9	\$1,961.5	\$1,959.3

Operating income by reportable segment and the reconciliation to (loss) income from continuing operations before income taxes are as follows:

	Three I	Months Ended	Six Mo		
	J	fune 30,	Jı	ine 30,	
(In millions)	2012	2011	2012	2011	
U.S. RadioShack company-operated stores	\$72.0	\$137.1	\$163.3	\$289.1	
Other (1)	(1.5) (6.1) 1.5	(4.5)
	70.5	131.0	164.8	284.6	
Unallocated (2) (3)	(91.7) (82.1) (184.2) (170.6)
Operating (loss) income	(21.2) 48.9	(19.4) 114.0	
Interest income	0.3	0.5	0.8	0.8	
Interest expense	(12.9) (10.9) (26.0) (20.6)
Other loss				(4.1)
(Loss) income from continuing operations before income					
taxes	\$(33.8) \$38.5	\$(44.6) \$90.1	

(1)

- Includes a net loss on the closing of our Chinese manufacturing plant of \$8.7 million and \$10.2 million for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2011, respectively.
- (2) The unallocated category included in operating income relates to our overhead and corporate expenses that are not allocated to our operating segments for management reporting purposes. Unallocated costs include corporate departmental expenses such as labor and benefits, advertising, insurance, distribution, and information technology costs, plus certain unusual or infrequent gains or losses.
- (3) The operating loss for our unallocated category increased by \$9.6 million and \$13.6 million for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2012, respectively. These increases were primarily due to decreased intercompany profits earned by our distribution operations due to the mix of products distributed.

NOTE 12 – SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following condensed consolidating financial information represents the financial information of RadioShack Corporation, its guarantor subsidiaries, and its non-guarantor subsidiaries prepared on the equity basis of accounting. Earnings of subsidiaries are, therefore, reflected in the parent company's investment accounts and earnings. The elimination entries primarily eliminate investments in subsidiaries and intercompany balances and transactions. The non-guarantor subsidiaries are comprised of the foreign subsidiaries of the Company and Tandy Life Insurance Company. The financial information may not necessarily be indicative of results of operations, cash flows or financial position had the guarantor or non-guarantor subsidiaries operated as independent entities.

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income (unaudited)

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2012

(In millions)	RadioShack Corporation (Parent Co.)	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
Net sales and operating revenues	\$933.0	\$969.4	\$ 27.9	\$ (977.1) \$ 953.2
Cost of products sold	646.9	905.7	17.4	(977.1) 592.9
Gross profit	286.1	63.7	10.5		360.3
Operating expenses:					
Selling, general and administrative	324.2	27.3	11.0		362.5
Depreciation and amortization	15.8	1.7	0.5		18.0
Impairment of long-lived assets	1.0				1.0
Total operating expenses	341.0	29.0	11.5		381.5
Operating (loss) income	(54.9)	34.7	(1.0)		(21.2)
Interest income		2.8	1.4	(3.9) 0.3
Interest expense	(16.8)			3.9	(12.9)
(Loss) income from continuing operations					
before income taxes	(71.7)	37.5	0.4		(33.8)
Income tax (benefit) expense	(29.0)	16.8	(0.6)		(12.8)
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of					
income taxes	21.7	0.6		(22.3)
(Loss) income from continuing operations	(21.0)	21.3	1.0	(22.3) (21.0)
Discontinued operations, net of income					
taxes					
Net (loss) income	\$(21.0)	\$21.3	\$ 1.0	\$ (22.3) \$ (21.0)
Comprehensive (loss) income	\$(23.9)	\$18.2	\$ (2.2)	\$ (16.0) \$ (23.9

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income (unaudited)

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2011

(In millions)	RadioShack Corporation (Parent Co.)	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		s Consolidated
Net sales and operating revenues	\$927.9	\$802.1	\$ 37.6	\$ (825.7) \$ 941.9
Cost of products sold	573.7	734.0	27.8	(825.7) 509.8
Gross profit	354.2	68.1	9.8		432.1
Operating expenses:					
Selling, general and administrative	320.7	25.7	17.9		364.3
Depreciation and amortization	16.6	0.8	0.9		18.3
Impairment of long-lived assets	0.6				0.6
Total operating expenses	337.9	26.5	18.8		383.2
Operating income (loss)	16.3	41.6	(9.0)	48.9
Interest income	0.2	2.4	1.4	(3.5) 0.5
Interest expense	(14.4))		3.5	(10.9)
•	,				,
Income (loss) from continuing operations					
before income taxes	2.1	44.0	(7.6)	38.5
Income tax (benefit) expense	(2.2)	16.6	0.6		15.0
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of					
income taxes	20.6	(9.0)	(11.6)
	240	10.4	(O. 4		\
Income (loss) from continuing operations	24.9	18.4	(8.2) (11.6) 23.5
Discontinued operations, net of income					
taxes		1.4			1.4
Not in some (loss)	\$24.9	\$19.8	¢ (0.2	¢ (11 6) \$ 24.9
Net income (loss)	φ 24. 9	φ 17.0	\$ (8.2	\$ (11.6) \$ 44.9
Comprehensive income (loss)	\$26.3	\$21.8	\$ (6.3	\$ (15.5)) \$ 26.3

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income (unaudited)

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

Net sales and operating revenues \$1,911.8 \$1,822.0 \$59.3 \$(1,831.6) \$1,961.5	d
Thet sales and operating revenues ϕ 1,911.0 ϕ 1,022.0 ϕ 39.3 ϕ (1,031.0) ϕ 1,901.3	
Cost of products sold 1,305.3 1,696.1 36.9 (1,831.6) 1,206.7	
Gross profit 606.5 125.9 22.4 754.8	
Operating expenses:	
Selling, general and administrative 657.6 57.3 20.9 735.8	
Depreciation and amortization 32.5 3.4 1.0 36.9	
Impairment of long-lived assets 1.5 1.5	
Total operating expenses 691.6 60.7 21.9 774.2	
Operating (loss) income (85.1) 65.2 0.5 (19.4)
Interest income 0.1 5.5 2.9 (7.7) 0.8	
Interest expense (33.7) 7.7 (26.0)
(Loss) income from continuing operations	
before income taxes (118.7) 70.7 3.4 (44.6)
Income tax (benefit) expense (45.8) 29.8 0.4 (15.6))
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of	
income taxes 43.9 2.1 (46.0)	
(Loss) income from continuing operations (29.0) 43.0 3.0 (46.0) (29.0)
Discontinued operations, net of income	
taxes	
Net (loss) income \$(29.0) \$43.0 \$3.0 \$(46.0) \$(29.0))
Comprehensive (loss) income \$(26.3) \$45.5 \$ 5.4 \$(50.9) \$(26.3))

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income (unaudited)

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2011

(In millions)	RadioShack Corporation (Parent Co.)		Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		s Consolidated
Net sales and operating revenues	\$1,955.5	\$1,696.8	\$ 73.8	\$ (1,766.8) \$ 1,959.3
Cost of products sold	1,224.4	1,562.3	52.9	(1,766.8) 1,072.8
Gross profit	731.1	134.5	20.9		886.5
Operating expenses:					
Selling, general and administrative	660.4	44.6	29.9		734.9
Depreciation and amortization	33.5	1.4	1.7		36.6
Impairment of long-lived assets	1.0				1.0
Total operating expenses	694.9	46.0	31.6		772.5
Operating income (loss)	36.2	88.5	(10.7)	114.0
Interest income	0.3	5.2	2.8	(7.5) 0.8
Interest expense	(28.1)		7.5	(20.6)
Other loss	(4.1)			(4.1)
Income (loss) from continuing operations					
before income taxes	4.3	93.7	(7.9)	90.1
Income tax (benefit) expense	(0.6) 34.6	1.2		35.2
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of					
income taxes	55.1	(10.1		(45.0)
			(0.4		
Income (loss) from continuing operations	60.0	49.0	(9.1	(45.0) 54.9
Discontinued operations, net of income					
taxes		5.1			5.1
	Φ.60.0	Φ. 7.4.1	Φ (0.1	Ф (45.0	λ Φ. 60. 0
Net income (loss)	\$60.0	\$54.1	\$ (9.1	\$ (45.0) \$ 60.0
Comprehensive income (loss)	\$63.4	\$58.1	\$ (5.2	\$ (52.9) \$ 63.4

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets (unaudited)

At June 30, 2012

(In millions) Assets Current assets:	RadioShack Corporation (Parent Co.)	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
Cash and cash equivalents	\$153.4	\$344.0	\$ 20.3	\$	\$ 517.7
Accounts and notes receivable, net	206.9	38.3	4.8		250.0
Inventories	718.0	76.4	34.3		828.7
Other current assets	138.8	0.9	5.1		144.8
Intercompany receivables		197.7		(197.7)	
Intercompany notes receivable		1,452.4		(1,452.4)	
Total current assets	1,217.1	2,109.7	64.5	(1,650.1)	
	_,	_,,		(=,=====)	
Property, plant and equipment, net	227.2	20.7	8.6		256.5
Goodwill	3.0	0.5	34.9		38.4
Other assets, net	39.6	1.5	10.5		51.6
Investment in subsidiaries	2,079.3	74.8		(2,154.1)	
Total assets	\$3,566.2	\$2,207.2	\$ 118.5	\$ (3,804.2)	\$ 2,087.7
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current liabilities:					
Current maturities of long-term debt	\$355.4	\$	\$	\$	\$ 355.4
Accounts payable	263.6	68.6	20.1		352.3
Accrued expenses and other current					
liabilities	215.6	43.4	8.5		267.5
Intercompany payables	195.8		1.9	(197.7)	
Intercompany notes payable	1,452.4			(1,452.4)	
Total current liabilities	2,482.8	112.0	30.5	(1,650.1)	975.2
Long-term debt	323.9				323.9
Other non-current liabilities	54.9	28.3	0.8		84.0
Total liabilities	2,861.6	140.3	31.3	(1,650.1)	1,383.1
G. 11 11 2 2	7046	20660	07.0	(0.154.1)	7046
Stockholders' equity	704.6	2,066.9	87.2	(2,154.1)	704.6
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$3,566.2	\$2,207.2	\$ 118.5	\$ (3,804.2)	\$ 2,087.7

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets (unaudited)

At December 31, 2011

(In millions) Assets	RadioShack Corporation (Parent Co.)	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
Current assets:	φ1 5 4.6	4040	Ф. 22.2	ф	φ. 501.7
Cash and cash equivalents	\$154.6	\$404.9	\$ 32.2	\$	\$ 591.7
Accounts and notes receivable, net	294.1	60.1	6.4		360.6
Inventories	658.8	57.4	28.2		744.4
Other current assets	110.7	0.8	4.6		116.1
Intercompany receivables		179.8		(179.8)	
Intercompany notes receivable		1,320.7		(1,320.7)	
Total current assets	1,218.2	2,023.7	71.4	(1,500.5)	1,812.8
Property, plant and equipment, net	238.9	22.7	8.6		270.2
Goodwill	3.0	0.5	33.5		37.0
Other assets, net	43.6	1.1	10.4		55.1
Investment in subsidiaries	2,033.0	70.1		(2,103.1)	
Total assets	\$3,536.7	\$2,118.1	\$ 123.9	\$ (3,603.6)	\$ 2,175.1
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity					
Current liabilities:					
Accounts payable	\$292.9	\$26.4	\$ 28.9	\$	\$ 348.2
Accrued expenses and other current				•	
liabilities	264.3	43.3	7.8		315.4
Intercompany payables	175.4		4.4	(179.8)	
Intercompany notes payable	1,320.7			(1,320.7)	
Total current liabilities	2,053.3	69.7	41.1	(1,500.5)	663.6
Total Carrent Hadilities	2,022.2	07.7	1111	(1,500.5)	002.0
Long-term debt	670.6				670.6
Other non-current liabilities	59.5	27.1	1.0		87.6
Total liabilities	2,783.4	96.8	42.1	(1,500.5)	1,421.8
10th Haomitics	2,703.7	70.0	72.1	(1,500.5	1,721.0
Stockholders' equity	753.3	2,021.3	81.8	(2,103.1)	753.3
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$3,536.7	\$2,118.1	\$ 123.9		\$ 2,175.1
Total habilities and stockholders equity	φ 5,550.7	φ 4,110.1	φ 143.9	φ (3,003.0)	φ 4,1/3.1

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets (unaudited)

At June 30, 2011

(In millions) Assets	RadioShack Corporation (Parent Co.)	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
Current assets:					
Cash and cash equivalents	\$191.7	\$341.1	\$ 19.4	\$	\$ 552.2
Accounts and notes receivable, net	229.7	41.1	7.6		278.4
Inventories	635.3	65.1	26.8		727.2
Other current assets	97.1	1.7	5.6		104.4
Intercompany receivables		222.7		(222.7)	
Intercompany notes receivable		1,267.0		(1,267.0)	
Total current assets	1,153.8	1,938.7	59.4	(1,489.7)	1,662.2
Property, plant and equipment, net	244.4	21.6	8.5		274.5
Goodwill, net	2.9	0.5	39.9		43.3
Other assets, net	60.8	13.5	10.0		84.3
Investment in subsidiaries	1,973.0	75.6		(2,048.6)	
Total assets	\$3,434.9	\$2,049.9	\$ 117.8	\$ (3,538.3)	\$ 2,064.3
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity					
Current liabilities:					
Accounts payable	\$182.4	\$24.7	\$ 18.3	\$	\$ 225.4
Accrued expenses and other current					
liabilities	228.9	37.9	8.0		274.8
Intercompany payables	219.6		3.1	(222.7)	
Intercompany notes payable	1,267.0			(1,267.0)	
Total current liabilities	1,897.9	62.6	29.4	(1,489.7)	500.2
Long-term debt	662.2				662.2
Other non-current liabilities	66.8	26.8	0.3		93.9
Total liabilities	2,626.9	89.4	29.7	(1,489.7)	1,256.3
Stockholders' equity	808.0	1,960.5	88.1	(2,048.6)	808.0
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$3,434.9	\$2,049.9	\$ 117.8	\$ (3,538.3)	\$ 2,064.3

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited)

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

(In millions)	RadioShacl Corporation (Parent Co.)		Guarantor Subsidiarie	_	 n-Guaranto ubsidiaries	_	Eliminations	Consolida	ted
Net cash (used in) provided by operating									
activities	\$(58.7)	\$90.2		\$ (8.6))	\$	\$ 22.9	
Cash flows from investing activities:									
Additions to property, plant and equipment	(25.4)	(1.5)	(0.8)		(27.7)
Changes in restricted cash	(26.5)						(26.5)
Other investing activities	0.1							0.1	
Net cash used in investing activities	(51.8)	(1.5)	(0.8))		(54.1)
Cash flows from financing activities:									
Payments of dividends	(24.9)						(24.9)
Changes in cash overdrafts	(17.9)						(17.9)
Change in intercompany receivable/payable	152.1		(149.6)	(2.5)			
Net cash provided by (used in) financing									
activities	109.3		(149.6)	(2.5)		(42.8)
					•				
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(1.2)	(60.9)	(11.9)		(74.0)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of									
period	154.6		404.9		32.2			591.7	
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$153.4		\$344.0		\$ 20.3		\$	\$ 517.7	
•									

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited)

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2011

(In millions)	RadioShack Corporation (Parent Co.)	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries	Consolidated
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	\$72.3	\$54.8	\$ (25.6	\$ \$ 101.5
Cash flows from investing activities:				
Additions to property, plant and equipment	(31.0)	(10.2)	(0.3	 (41.5)
Net cash used in investing activities	(31.0)	(10.2)	(0.3	 (41.5)

Edgar Filing: RADIOSHACK CORP - Form 10-Q

Cash flows from financing activities:							
Issuance of long-term notes	322.5						 322.5
Long-term notes issuance costs	(6.2)					 (6.2
Repayments of borrowings	(306.8)					 (306.8
Purchases of treasury stock	(101.4)					 (101.4
Changes in cash overdrafts	12.6						 12.6
Proceeds from exercise of stock options	2.1						 2.1
Change in intercompany receivable/payable	117.9		(130.9)	13.0		
Net cash provided by (used in) financing							
activities	40.7		(130.9)	13.0		 (77.2
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash							
equivalents	82.0		(86.3)	(12.9)	 (17.2
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of							
period	109.7		427.4		32.3		 569.4
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$191.7		\$341.1	\$	19.4		\$ \$ 552.2

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS ("MD&A").

This MD&A section of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q discusses our results of operations, liquidity and capital resources, and certain factors that may affect our future results of operations. You should read this MD&A in conjunction with our condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included under Part I, Item 1, of this Quarterly Report, as well as with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Second Quarter Summary

Net sales and operating revenues increased \$11.3 million, or 1.2%, to \$953.2 million when compared with the same period last year. Comparable store sales were essentially flat with an increase of 0.1%. Our increase in net sales and operating revenues was driven primarily by increased sales in our mobility platform, which was partially offset by decreased sales in our consumer electronics platform.

Consolidated gross profit decreased \$71.8 million, or 16.6%, for the second quarter, when compared with the same period last year. The decrease in gross profit dollars was primarily driven by decreased gross profit for our postpaid wireless business in our U.S. RadioShack company-operated stores. Consolidated gross margin decreased by 8.1 percentage points to 37.8% in the second quarter when compared with the same period last year. The decrease in gross margin was a result of the decreases in the gross margin rates of our postpaid wireless business in our U.S. RadioShack company-operated stores and Target Mobile centers, combined with the increased percentage that postpaid wireless revenues represented as a percentage of our consolidated net sales and operating revenues when compared with the same period last year. The decrease in the gross margin rate of our postpaid wireless business was driven by a change in our sales mix towards lower margin smartphones, primarily the iPhone, and discounted pricing promotions during the second quarter.

Consolidated SG&A expense decreased \$1.8 million, or 0.5%, for the second quarter, when compared with the same period last year. This represents a 0.7 percentage point decrease as a percentage of net sales and operating revenues for the second quarter.

Our loss from continuing operations was \$21.0 million (\$0.21 per share) for the second quarter, compared with income from continuing operations of \$23.5 million (\$0.23 per diluted share) for the same period last year.

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations was a negative \$1.1 million, compared with \$69.1 million for the same period last year.

		Months Ended fune 30,	Six Months Ended June 30,		
(In millions)	2012	2011	2012	2011	
Reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA from continuing					
operations to income from continuing operations					
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations(1)	\$(1.1) \$69.1	\$21.6	\$154.2	
Interest expense, net of interest income	(12.6) (10.4) (25.2) (19.8)
Income tax benefit (expense)	12.8	(15.0) 15.6	(35.2)
Depreciation and amortization	(20.1) (20.2) (41.0) (40.2)

Other loss				(4.1)
(Loss) income from continuing operations	\$(21.0) \$23.5	\$(29.0) \$54.9	

(1) Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations ("Adjusted EBITDA"), a non-GAAP financial measure, is defined as earnings from continuing operations before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization. Our calculation of Adjusted EBITDA is also adjusted for other income or loss and cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles, if applicable. The comparable financial measure to Adjusted EBITDA under GAAP is income from continuing operations. Adjusted EBITDA is used by management to evaluate the operating performance of our business for comparable periods. Adjusted EBITDA should not be used by investors or others as the sole basis for formulating investment decisions, as it excludes a number of important items. We compensate for this limitation by using GAAP financial measures as well in managing our business. In the view of management, Adjusted EBITDA is an important indicator of operating performance because Adjusted EBITDA excludes the effects of financing and investing activities by eliminating the effects of interest, depreciation costs, and other losses.

RadioShack Retail Outlets

The table below shows our retail locations allocated among U.S. and Mexico company-operated stores, Target Mobile centers, and dealer and other outlets at the following dates:

	June 30, 2012	March 31, 2012	Dec. 31, 2011	Sep. 30, 2011	June 30, 2011
U.S. RadioShack company-operated stores (1)	4,423	4,435	4,476	4,461	4,463
Target Mobile centers	1,503	1,497	1,496	1,490	1,481
Mexico RadioShack company-operated stores	227	225	227	211	211
Dealer and other outlets	1,085	1,115	1,110	1,123	1,142
Total number of retail locations	7,238	7,272	7,309	7,285	7,297

(1) We permanently closed 19 stores after we decided not to renew their leases in the second quarter, which brought our total number of stores closed in 2012 to 59 stores.

Net Sales and Operating Revenues

Consolidated net sales and operating revenues are as follows:

	Three Months Ended June 30,		Six Months Ended June 30,		
(In millions)	2012	2011	2012	2011	
U.S. RadioShack company-operated stores	\$772.4	\$797.8	\$1,606.0	\$1,693.0	
Other	180.8	144.1	355.5	266.3	
Consolidated net sales and operating revenues	\$953.2	\$941.9	\$1,961.5	\$1,959.3	
Consolidated net sales and operating revenues increase					
(decrease)	1.2	% (2.1	%) 0.1	% 0.3	%
Comparable store sales(1) increase (decrease)	0.1	% (7.8	%) (2.1	%) (4.1	%)

(1) Comparable store sales include the sales of U.S. and Mexico RadioShack company-operated stores as well as Target Mobile centers with more than 12 full months of recorded sales. Sales from discontinued operations have been excluded from these calculations.

U.S. RadioShack Company-Operated Stores Segment

U.S. RadioShack company-operated store sales for the second quarter decreased \$25.4 million, or 3.2%, and decreased \$87.0 million, or 5.1%, for the first six months of 2012 when compared with the same periods last year. Increased sales in our mobility platform were more than offset by decreased sales in our consumer electronics platform.

Mobility Platform: Sales in our mobility platform (which includes postpaid and prepaid wireless handsets, commissions and residual income, prepaid wireless airtime, e-readers, and tablet devices) increased 3.3% for the second quarter and decreased 1.2% for the first six months of 2012, when compared with the same periods last year.

The increase in sales for the second quarter was primarily driven by increased sales in our postpaid wireless business and increased sales of tablet devices. These sales increases were partially offset by decreased sales in our prepaid wireless business. The sales increase in our postpaid wireless business was driven by an increase in the average revenue per unit sold, which was partially offset by a decrease in the number of postpaid units sold. The decrease in the number of postpaid units sold was primarily driven by decreased unit sales of Sprint handsets, which was partially offset by increased sales of Verizon handsets. The decrease in Sprint handset sales was due to changes in Sprint's customer and credit models that were implemented in mid-2011. The increase in the average revenue per postpaid unit was primarily driven by a change in our sales mix towards higher priced smartphones, primarily the iPhone.

The decrease in sales for the first six months of 2012 was primarily driven by decreased sales in our prepaid and postpaid wireless businesses. These sales decreases were partially offset by increased sales of tablet devices. The sales decrease in our postpaid wireless business was driven by a decrease in the number of postpaid units sold, which was partially offset by an increase in the average revenue per unit sold. The decrease in the number of postpaid units sold was primarily driven by decreased unit sales of Sprint handsets, which was partially offset by increased sales of Verizon handsets. The decrease in Sprint handset sales was due to changes in Sprint's customer and credit models that were implemented in mid-2011. The increase in the average revenue per postpaid unit was primarily driven by a change in our sales mix towards higher priced smartphones, primarily the iPhone.

Signature Platform: Sales in our signature platform (which includes wireless, music, computer, video game, and home entertainment accessories; general purpose and special purpose power products; technical products; and services) was flat for the second quarter and increased 0.3% for the first six months of 2012, compared with the same periods last year. Product categories with sales increases during these periods included headphones and tablet accessories. Product categories with sales decreases during the period included home entertainment accessories and personal computer accessories.

Consumer Electronics Platform: Sales in our consumer electronics platform (which includes digital music players, personal computing products, laptop computers, cameras, residential telephones, digital televisions, and other consumer electronics products) decreased 26.5% for the second quarter and decreased 25.2% for the first six months of 2012, compared with the same periods last year. These sales decreases were driven by sales declines in laptop computers, digital cameras, digital music players, GPS devices, and digital televisions.

Other Sales

Amounts in other sales reflect our business activities that are not separately reportable, which include sales through our Target Mobile centers, sales to our independent dealers, and sales generated by our www.radioshack.com website and our Mexican subsidiary. Other sales increased \$36.7 million, or 25.5%, for the second quarter and increased \$89.2 million, or 33.5%, for the first six months of 2012, when compared with the same periods last year. These sales increases were driven primarily by increased sales at our Target Mobile centers for both periods.

Gross Profit
Consolidated gross profit and gross margin are as follows:

		Months Ended June 30,	Six Months Ended June 30,		
(In millions)	2012	2011	2012	2011	
Gross profit	\$360.3	\$432.1	\$754.8	\$886.5	
Gross margin	37.8	% 45.9	% 38.5	% 45.2	%
Gross profit decrease	(16.6	%) (5.5	%) (14.9	%) (4.0	%)

Consolidated gross profit decreased \$71.8 million, or 16.6%, for the second quarter and decreased \$131.7 million, or 14.9% for the first six months of 2012, when compared with the same periods last year. These decreases were primarily driven by decreased gross profit for our postpaid wireless business in our U.S. RadioShack company-operated stores.

The decrease in gross profit dollars for our postpaid wireless business in our U.S. RadioShack company-operated stores was driven by decreases in average gross profit dollars per unit sold and decreases in the number of units sold for the second quarter and the first six months of 2012, when compared with the same periods last year. The decreases in average gross profit dollars per unit sold were due to a higher mix of lower margin iPhones and discounted pricing promotions during the second quarter. The decreases in the number of postpaid wireless handsets sold were due to decreased unit sales in our Sprint postpaid wireless business.

The decreases in our consolidated gross margin rates were a result of the decreases in the gross margin rates of our postpaid wireless business in our U.S. RadioShack company-operated stores and Target Mobile centers, combined

with the increased percentage that postpaid wireless revenues represented as a percentage of our consolidated net sales and operating revenues when compared with the same periods last year. The decreases in the gross margin rates of our postpaid wireless business were driven by a change in our sales mix towards lower margin smartphones and discounted pricing promotions during the second quarter. Smartphones generally, and the iPhone in particular, carry a lower gross margin rate, given their higher average cost basis.

The remaining decreases in gross profit dollars were due to decreased revenues for our non-postpaid wireless business, which had average gross margin rates that were consistent with the same periods last year.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

Consolidated selling, general and administrative expense is as follows:

	Three Months Ended June 30.		Six Months Ended June 30,		
(In millions)	2012	2011	2012	2011	
Selling, general and administrative expense	\$362.5	\$364.3	\$735.8	\$734.9	
As a percent of net sales and operating revenues	38.0	% 38.7	% 37.5	% 37.5	%
Selling, general and administrative expense (decrease) increase	(0.5	%) 5.0	% 0.1	% 3.4	%

Consolidated SG&A expense decreased \$1.8 million, or 0.5%, for the second quarter and increased \$0.9 million, or 0.1%, for the first six months of 2012, when compared with the same periods last year. This represents a 0.7 percentage point decrease as a percentage of net sales and operating revenues for the second quarter and no change for the first six months of 2012.

The decrease in SG&A expense for the second quarter was due to costs incurred to close our Chinese manufacturing plant in the second quarter of 2011, which were not incurred in the second quarter of 2012. SG&A expense for the second quarter of 2011 included severance costs of \$5.6 million and a foreign currency exchange loss of \$1.5 million. This decrease was partially offset by increased store incentive compensation at our U.S. RadioShack company-operated stores and Target Mobile centers, when compared with the second quarter of 2011.

In addition to the items discussed above, SG&A expense for the first six months of 2012 also included increased costs to support additional Target Mobile centers that were not open in the same period last year and decreased advertising expense in the first quarter.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization from continuing operations, including amounts recorded in cost of products sold, was \$20.1 million for the second quarter and \$41.0 million for the first six months of 2012, compared with \$20.2 million and \$40.2 million, respectively, for the same periods last year.

Net Interest Expense

Consolidated net interest expense, which is interest expense net of interest income, was \$12.6 million for the second quarter and \$25.2 million for the first six months of 2012, compared with \$10.4 million and \$19.8 million, respectively, for the same periods last year.

Interest expense for 2012 primarily consists of interest paid at the stated coupon rate on our notes and the non-cash amortization of the discounts on our notes. Interest expense for 2011 also included cash received on our interest rate swaps and the non-cash change in fair value of our interest rate swaps.

Interest expense increased \$2.0 million for the second quarter and increased \$5.4 million for the first six months of 2012, when compared with the same periods last year. These increases were driven by the interest expense related to our 2019 Notes, which were outstanding for all of the second quarter and first six months of 2012, but were not outstanding during all of the same periods last year. Non-cash interest expense was \$4.4 million for the second quarter and \$8.7 million for the first six months of 2012, compared with \$3.9 million and \$8.6 million, respectively, for the

same periods last year.

Income Tax Expense

The income tax provision for each quarterly period reflects our current estimate of the effective tax rate for the full year, adjusted for any discrete events that are recorded in the quarterly period in which they occur. Our effective tax rate was 37.9% for the second quarter and 35.0% for the first six months of 2012, compared with 39.0% and 39.1%, respectively, for the same periods last year. Our income tax benefits for the second quarter and the first six months of 2012 included offsetting discrete income tax expense items related to certain stock-based compensation effects, interest accrued on our liabilities for uncertain tax positions, and valuation allowances established in the second quarter for certain state income tax deferred tax assets.

Discontinued Operations

All of our remaining kiosks located in Sam's Club stores were transitioned to Sam's Club by June 30, 2011. Income before income taxes for these discontinued operations was zero for the second quarter of 2012 and the first six months of 2012, compared with \$2.4 million and \$8.4 million, respectively, for the same periods last year.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Refer to Note 2 – "New Accounting Standards" in the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flow Overview

Operating Activities: Cash provided by operating activities for the first six months of 2012 was \$22.9 million, compared with \$101.5 million for the same period last year. Cash flows from operating activities are comprised of net income plus non-cash adjustments to net income and changes in working capital components. Net income plus non-cash adjustments to net income was \$30.3 million for the first six months of 2012, compared with \$118.1 million for the same period last year. Cash used in working capital components was \$7.4 million for the first six months of 2012, compared with \$16.6 million for the same period last year. The decrease in net income plus non-cash adjustments was primarily driven by decreased earnings for the first six months of 2012.

Investing Activities: Cash used in investing activities was \$54.1 million for the first six months of 2012, compared with \$41.5 million for the same period last year. This increase was driven by the change in our restricted cash balance in 2012, which was partially offset by decreased capital expenditures in 2012, when compared to the first six months of 2011. See "Cash Requirements" below in this MD&A regarding our restricted cash and capital expenditures.

Financing Activities: Cash used in financing activities was \$42.8 million for the first six months of 2012, compared with \$77.2 million for the same period last year. Cash used in financing activities for 2012 included payments of our quarterly dividends for the first and second quarters that were not paid in the first six months of 2011. The net cash used in financing activities for the first six months of 2011 included share repurchases of \$101.4 million.

Free Cash Flow: Our free cash flow, defined as cash flows from operating activities less dividends paid and additions to property, plant and equipment, was a negative \$29.7 million for the first six months of 2012, compared with a positive \$60.0 million for the same period last year. The decrease in free cash flow for the first quarter of 2012 was attributable to decreased cash flows from operating activities as described above and the payment of our quarterly dividend in the first and second quarters of 2012.

We believe free cash flow is a relevant indicator of our ability to repay maturing debt, make dividend payments or fund other uses of capital that management believes will enhance shareholder value. The comparable financial measure to free cash flow under generally accepted accounting principles is cash flows from operating activities, which was \$22.9 million for the first six months of 2012, compared with \$101.5 million for the same period last year. We do not intend for the presentation of free cash flow, a non-GAAP financial measure, to be considered in isolation or as a substitute for measures prepared in accordance with GAAP, nor do we intend to imply that free cash flow represents cash flow available for discretionary expenditures. The following table is a reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to free cash flow.

	Six Months Ended June 30,			Year Ended December 31,		
(In millions)	2012		,	2011		2011
Net cash provided by operating activities Less:	\$ 22.9		\$	101.5	\$	217.9
Additions to property, plant and equipment	27.7			41.5		82.1
Payments of dividends	24.9					49.6
Free cash flow	\$ (29.7)	\$	60.0	\$	86.2

SOURCES OF LIQUIDITY

As of June 30, 2012, we had \$517.7 million of cash and cash equivalents and \$26.5 million of restricted cash. See further discussion of our restricted cash under 'Cash Requirements' later in this report. We believe that our cash flows from operations and available cash and cash equivalents will adequately fund our operations, our capital expenditures, and our debt obligations. Additionally, at June 30, 2012, we had \$392.5 million of availability under our \$450 million asset-based revolving credit facility that expires in January 2016 ("2016 Credit Facility"). We continually assess our capital structure and liquidity needs and evaluate strategic capital and liquidity initiatives. Although we have cash on hand to satisfy the maturity, we are currently considering alternatives to address our maturing 2013 Convertible notes. These may include, but are not limited to, new revolving or term loans, new bond issuances, debt exchanges, modifications of existing debt, and repurchases of existing debt including through open market repurchases or tender offers. Any changes, if implemented, could materially affect our capital structure, liquidity, debt ratios, and cash balances. We also regularly assess our dividend program in the context of our overall capital structure and liquidity needs. On July 25, 2012, we announced that we suspended our dividend.

2016 Credit Facility: We had no borrowings outstanding under the 2016 Credit Facility at any time during the first six months of 2012, but our availability under the credit facility was reduced by an aggregate amount of outstanding commercial letters of credit ranging from \$0.5 million to \$1.4 million during the second quarter.

The 2016 Credit Facility contains affirmative and negative covenants that, among other things, restrict certain payments, including dividends and share repurchases. We were in compliance with those covenants at June 30, 2012. Also, if we do not meet a specified consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio during a trailing twelve-month period, the availability under our credit facility will be reduced by the greater of 12.5% of the borrowing base (currently \$56.3 million) or \$45 million. As of June 30, 2012, our availability under the 2016 Credit Facility was reduced by \$56.3 million as a result of our consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio at June 30, 2012.

We believe that the reduced availability under our credit facility will have no effect on our ability to fund our operations, capital expenditures, or debt obligations, and we currently anticipate that no amount would be borrowed under the current credit facility. As a result of our recent trend of lower earnings, it is possible that we may continue to not meet the specified consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio in future periods.

Refer to Note 4 – "Indebtedness and Borrowing Facilities" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, for additional information regarding this credit facility.

CASH REQUIREMENTS

Long-term debt: There have been no additions or reductions to our long-term debt since December 31, 2011. At June 30, 2012, we classified the 2013 Convertible Notes as a current liability. While we are not obligated to repay the principal amount of the notes until August 1, 2013, a holder of the notes may elect to convert the notes beginning on May 1, 2013, which is within one year of our balance sheet date. Based on the \$3.84 per share closing market price of our common stock at June 29, 2012, a holder who elects to convert their notes before the maturity date would receive a conversion value of \$161.57 per \$1,000 principal note.

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents, cash flows from operations, and the availability under our 2016 Credit Facility can adequately fund the redemption of the 2013 Convertible Notes on August 1, 2013. We are currently considering alternatives relating to our maturing 2013 Convertible Notes.

Refer to Note 4 – "Indebtedness and Borrowing Facilities" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, for information regarding our long-term debt.

Capital Expenditures: We estimate that our capital expenditure requirements for 2012 will range from \$70 million to \$90 million. Information systems projects and U.S. RadioShack company-operated store remodels and relocations will account for the majority of these anticipated capital expenditures. Cash and cash equivalents and cash generated from operating activities will be used to fund future capital expenditure needs.

Restricted Cash: Restricted cash totaled \$26.5 million at June 30, 2012, and is included in other current assets in our consolidated balance sheets. This cash is pledged as collateral for a standby letter of credit issued to our general liability insurance provider. We have the ability to withdraw this cash at any time and instead provide a letter of credit issued under our 2016 Credit Facility similar to the letter of credit that was issued under our 2016 Credit Facility at December 31, 2011. We have elected to pledge this cash as collateral to reduce our costs associated with our general liability insurance.

Contractual Obligations: There have been no significant changes to our contractual obligations and commercial commitments outside the ordinary course of business since December 31, 2011. Refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, for additional information regarding our contractual obligations and commercial commitments.

Capitalization

The following table sets forth information about our capitalization on the dates indicated.

	June 30, 2012			nber 31, 011	June 30, 2011		
(In millions)	Dollars	Percent	Dollars	Percent	Dollars	Percen	t
Current maturities of long-ter	m						
debt	\$355.4	25.7	% \$	0.0	% \$	0.0	%
Long-term debt, excluding							
current							
maturities	323.9	23.4	670.6	47.1	662.2	45.0	
Total debt	679.3	49.1	670.6	47.1	662.2	45.0	
Stockholders' equity	704.6	50.9	753.3	52.9	808.0	55.0	
Total capitalization	\$1,383.9	100.0	% \$1,423.9	100.0	% \$1,470.2	100.0	%

The change from our June 30, 2011, stockholders' equity balance to our June 30, 2012, balance reflects the \$74.5 million in dividends paid in the last twelve months.

Dividends: We paid a \$0.125 per share dividend in the first and second quarters of 2012, which totaled \$12.5 million in the second quarter and \$24.9 million for the first six months of 2012. The dividends were funded from cash on hand. On July 25, 2012, we announced that we suspended our dividend.

Share Repurchases: In October 2011, our Board of Directors approved an authorization for a total share repurchase of \$200 million of the Company's common stock to be executed through open market or private transactions. On January 30, 2012, we announced that the remaining \$188.1 million of share repurchases under this program have been suspended.

The declaration of dividends, the dividend rate, and the amount and timing of share repurchases are at the sole discretion of our Board of Directors, and plans for future dividends and share repurchases may be revised by the board at any time. RadioShack's dividend and share repurchase programs could be affected by, among other things, changes in RadioShack's results of operations, capital expenditures, cash flows, and applicable tax laws.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Other than our operating leases, we do not have any off-balance sheet financing arrangements, transactions, or special purpose entities. Refer to Note 13 – "Commitments and Contingencies" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, for information regarding our operating leases.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our critical accounting policies and estimates have not significantly changed since December 31, 2011. Refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, for a discussion of our critical accounting policies and estimates.

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

Matters discussed in MD&A and in other parts of this report include forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws, including Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). These forward-looking statements are statements

that are not historical and may be identified by the use of words such as "expect," "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "potential or similar words. These matters include statements concerning management's plans and objectives relating to our operations or economic performance and related assumptions. We specifically disclaim any duty to update any of the information set forth in this report, including any forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are made based on management's current expectations and beliefs concerning future events and, therefore, involve a number of assumptions, risks, and uncertainties, including the risk factors described in Item 1A, "Risk Factors," of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011. Management cautions that forward-looking statements are not guarantees, and our actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

At June 30, 2012, we held no derivative instruments that materially increased our exposure to market risks for interest rates, foreign currency rates, commodity prices or other market price risks.

Our exposure to interest rate risk results from changes in short-term interest rates. Interest rate risk exists with respect to our cash equivalents of \$354.9 million at June 30, 2012. These instruments currently yield less than 100 basis points on an annualized basis. A hypothetical decrease of interest rates to zero would result in a decrease in annual interest income of less than \$3.6 million. This hypothesis assumes no change in the cash equivalent balance.

We have market risk arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates related to our purchase of inventory from manufacturers located in China and other areas outside of the U.S. Our purchases are denominated in U.S. dollars; however, the strengthening of the Chinese currency, or other currencies, against the U.S. dollar could cause our vendors to increase the prices of items we purchase from them. It is not possible to estimate the effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes on our purchases of this inventory. We are also exposed to foreign currency fluctuations related to our Mexican subsidiary, which accounted for less than 5% of consolidated net sales and operating revenues.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established a system of disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information relating to the Company that is required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive officer (President and Chief Executive Officer) and our principal financial officer (Executive Vice President – Chief Financial Officer and Chief Administrative Officer), in a timely fashion. An evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) was performed as of the end of the period covered by this report. This evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer. Based upon that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Refer to Note 10 – "Commitments and Contingencies" in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for information on legal proceedings.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

The following risk factors are an update to and should be read in conjunction with the risk factors in Item 1A -- Risk Factors in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for its Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2011:

Our inability to increase or maintain profitability of our operations could materially adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

A critical component of our business strategy is to improve our overall profitability. Our ability to increase profitable sales in existing retail locations may be affected by:

• Our ability to offer and sell products with sufficient gross profit to improve our overall profitability

- Our success in attracting customers into our retail locations
 - Our ability to choose the correct mix of products to sell
- Our ability to keep our retail locations stocked with merchandise customers will purchase
- Our ability to maintain fully-staffed retail locations with appropriately trained employees
 - Our ability to remain relevant to the consumer
- Our ability to sustain existing retail channels such as our Target Mobile centers and compete with the adoption of new distribution methods

Our products and services must appeal to a broad range of consumers whose preferences cannot be predicted with certainty and are subject to frequent change. Our success depends upon our ability to anticipate and respond in a timely manner to trends in consumer preferences, tastes, spending patterns and other lifestyle decisions relating to consumer electronics. The introduction and availability of new products are often controlled by manufacturers and may be subject to the cooperation of third parties such as wireless providers. If we fail to identify and respond to these trends in a timely manner, our sales may decline.

In addition, consumer spending remains uncertain, which makes it more challenging for us to maintain or grow our operating income. As a result, we must continue to control our expense structure. Failure to manage our labor and benefit rates, advertising and marketing expenses, or other store expenses could delay or prevent us from achieving increased profitability or otherwise have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

We had negative adjusted EBITDA in the second quarter of 2012. These results have had a negative impact on our financial condition and cash flows from operations. Our primary sources of liquidity include our cash flows from operations, available cash and cash equivalents and availability under our 2016 Credit Facility, which we believe will adequately fund our operations, our capital expenditures, and our debt obligations. However, our business may not quickly return to profitability and we may incur losses beyond our current expectations. Continued weak earnings may have an adverse effect on our financial condition and cash flows from operations.

Our inability to attract and retain an effective management team or changes in the cost or availability of a suitable workforce to manage and support our strategies could materially adversely affect our results of operation and financial condition.

Our success depends in large part upon our ability to attract, motivate and retain a qualified management team and other employees. We have experienced numerous changes in our executive management team in the past several years, including a new chief financial officer in 2011 and the departure of several executive vice presidents in the first half of 2012. Further, the ability to retain key employees during a period of weak earnings can be difficult. If we are unable to retain key executive officers, then it may be difficult for us to maintain a competitive position within the industry or to implement strategic changes in the future. In addition, qualified non-management individuals needed to fill necessary positions could be in short supply. The inability to recruit and retain such individuals on a continuous basis could result in high employee turnover at our stores and in our company generally, which could materially adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. Additionally, competition for qualified employees requires us to continually assess our compensation structure. Competition for qualified employees has required, and in the future could require, us to pay higher wages to attract a sufficient number of qualified employees, resulting in higher labor compensation expense. In addition, mandated changes in minimum wage or health care reform may materially increase our employee-related costs.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS.

(c) Stock Repurchases

The following table sets forth information concerning purchases made by or on behalf of RadioShack or any affiliated purchaser (as defined in the SEC's rules) of RadioShack common stock for the periods indicated.

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY RADIOSHACK

				Total Number of		Approximate
				Shares Purchased as	Do	ollar Value of Shares
	Total Number		Average	Part of Publicly		That May Yet Be
	of Shares		Price Paid	Announced Plans or		Purchased Under
Period	Purchased		per Share	Programs (1)	the	Plans or Programs (1)
April $1 - 30$,						
2012		\$	0.00		\$	188,100,224
May $1 - 31$,						
2012	5,357	(2) \$	4.75		\$	188,100,224
June $1 - 30$,						
2012		\$	0.00		\$	188,100,224
Total	5,357					

(1) In October 2011, our Board of Directors approved an authorization for a total share repurchase of \$200 million of the Company's common stock to be executed through open market or private

transactions. The share repurchase authorization has no stated expiration date. On January 30, 2012, we announced that share repurchases under this program have been suspended. At June 30, 2012, \$188.1 million of the original authorized amount had not been used under this program.

(2) Shares acquired by RadioShack for tax withholdings upon vesting of restricted stock awards, which were not repurchased pursuant to a share repurchase program.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS.

A list of the exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K and filed as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is set forth in the Index to Exhibits on page 30.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

RADIOSHACK CORPORATION

July 25, 2012 By: /s/ Dorvin D. Lively

Dorvin D. Lively

Executive Vice President - Chief Financial Officer

and Chief Administrative Officer (principal financial officer)

July 25, 2012 By: /s/ Martin O. Moad

Martin O. Moad

Vice President and Corporate Controller

(principal accounting officer)

RADIOSHACK CORPORATION

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description

- 3.1 Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of RadioShack Corporation(1) dated May 18, 2000 (filed as Exhibit 3a to RadioShack's Form 10-Q filed on August 11, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference).
- 3.2 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of RadioShack Corporation(1) dated July 26, 1999 (filed as Exhibit 3a(i) to RadioShack's Form 10-Q filed on August 11, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference).
- 3.3 Certificate of Elimination of Series C
 Conversion Preferred Stock of
 RadioShack Corporation(1) dated July
 26, 1999 (filed as Exhibit 3a(ii) to
 RadioShack's Form 10-Q filed on
 August 11, 1999, and incorporated
 herein by reference).
- 3.4 Amended Certificate of Designations,
 Preferences and Rights of Series A
 Junior Participating Preferred Stock of
 RadioShack Corporation(1) dated July
 26, 1999 (filed as Exhibit 3a(iii) to
 RadioShack's Form 10-Q filed on
 August 11, 1999, and incorporated
 herein by reference).
- 3.5 Certificate of Designations of Series B TESOP Convertible Preferred Stock dated June 29, 1990 (filed as Exhibit 4A to RadioShack's Form S-8 for the RadioShack Corporation Incentive Stock Plan, Reg. No. 33-51603, filed on November 12, 1993, and incorporated herein by reference).

- 3.6 RadioShack Corporation Bylaws, amended and restated as of May 19, 2011 (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to RadioShack's Form 8-K filed on May 23, 2011, and incorporated herein by reference).
- 4.1 Indenture, dated as of May 3, 2011, by and among RadioShack Corporation, the Guarantors named therein, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to RadioShack's Form 8-K filed on May 4, 2011, and incorporated herein by reference).
- 4.2 Form of Senior Notes due 2019 (included in Exhibit 4.1 to RadioShack's Form 8-K filed on May 4, 2011, and incorporated by reference).
- 4.3 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2011, by and among RadioShack Corporation, the Guarantors named therein, and the Initial Purchasers named therein (filed as Exhibit 4.3 to RadioShack's Form 8-K filed on May 4, 2011, and incorporated herein by reference).
- 10.1 (2) Joint Venture Agreement between RadioShack Global Sourcing (Hong Kong) Ltd. And First Honest Enterprises Limited and Perfect Legend Development Limited dated June 6, 2012.
- 31(a) (2) Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the principal executive officer of RadioShack Corporation.
- 31(b) (2) Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the principal financial officer of RadioShack Corporation.
- 32 (2)(3) Section 1350 Certification of the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of RadioShack Corporation.

- 101.INS XBRL Instance Document (2)(4)
- 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (2)(4)
- 101.CALXBRL Taxonomy Extension
 Calculation Linkbase Document (2)(4)
- 101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension
 Definition Linkbase Document (2)(4)
- 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document (2)(4)
- 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document (2)(4)
- (1) RadioShack Corporation was known as Tandy Corporation until May 18, 2000.
- (2) Filed with this report.
- (3) This certification shall not be deemed "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act or otherwise subject to the liability of that section. This certification shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates it by reference.
- (4) The XBRL-related information in Exhibit 101 shall not be deemed "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates such information by reference.